
 

 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE 

 
 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 

v. 
 
GOODFISH ENTERPRISES, LLC and 
CHRISTOPHER LUKACS, 
 

Defendants. 
 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

  

 

Civil Action No. __________________ 

 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
 

 

 

 
COMPLAINT 

The United States of America (“United States”), for its complaint, alleges as follows:   

1. This is an action by the United States under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 

3729–33 (“FCA”) and federal common law to recover treble damages and penalties arising from 

Defendants’ fraud on the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 

(“HUD”) and its Housing Choice Voucher Program (“HCVP” or “Section 8”). 

2. Defendant Goodfish Enterprises, LLC (“Goodfish”) and its principal Christopher 

Lukacs (“Lukacs”) own more than 90 rental homes in the Sparrow Run development in Newark, 

Delaware.  At any given time, a number of these homes are leased to low-income tenants who 

receive assistance with their rent through the HCVP. 

3. As a condition of participation in the HCVP, landlords must regularly certify that 

the rents they charge to assisted tenants are not higher than those paid by unassisted tenants in 

comparable properties.  Although Goodfish and Lukacs made such certifications, they regularly 

charged HCVP participants higher rents than those paid by unassisted tenants.   
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4. Based on the rents charged, each of Defendants’ certifications of rent 

comparability, which are statutory and regulatory requirements of payment, was fraudulent.  

Each of these false certifications was a violation of the FCA. 

5. In addition, Defendants repeatedly made false statements on HCVP documents 

that requested information about the rents charged for comparable unassisted rentals.  Each of 

these false statements likewise violated the FCA. 

6. Based on these fraudulent certifications and statements, Defendants received more 

than $950,000 dollars in payments from HUD. 

7. The United States now seeks to recover treble damages and statutory penalties for 

Defendants’ violations of the FCA. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

8. This Court has jurisdiction over the claims in this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 

§§ 1331, 1345, and 1355(a). 

9. Venue in this District is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b)(2) and 1395 

because a substantial part of the events and omissions giving rise to the claim occurred within 

this District and because one or more defendants can be found in this District.  

PARTIES 

10. Plaintiff is the United States of America, on behalf of HUD.  HUD is the 

administrator of the HCVP. 

11. Goodfish is a Delaware limited liability corporation with a business address at 66 

Egret Court, Newark, DE, 19702. 

12. Lukacs is a natural person who resides at 297 Yorkminster Road, West Chester, 

PA, 19382.  Lukacs is the sole owner and managing member of Goodfish. 
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13. Goodfish is the record owner of 94 properties in the Sparrow Run development.  

Lukacs owns an additional four properties in Sparrow Run in his own name.  These 98 properties 

are collectively referred to herein as the Defendant Properties. 

THE PROGRAM 

14. The HCVP is the federal government’s primary program for helping low-income 

families, the elderly, and the disabled to afford decent, safe, and sanitary housing in the private 

market.  

15. Housing assistance, in the form of a voucher, is provided on behalf of the family 

or individual and participants are able to find their own housing, including single-family homes, 

townhouses, and apartments. 

16. The HCVP – commonly referred to as the Section 8 program – was established by 

Section 8 of the Housing Act of 1937, now codified at 42 U.S.C. § 1437f.  The regulations 

covering the HCVP are found at 24 C.F.R. Part 982. 

17. The HCVP is overseen and funded by HUD and is administered at the local level 

by public housing authorities in the state, county, or municipality (“PHAs”).   

18. HCVP participants generally pay 30-40% of their monthly income towards rent.  

PHAs make monthly housing assistance payments to landlords on behalf of program participants 

for the remainder of the agreed-upon rent.   

19. HUD provides PHAs with the funds to make the monthly housing assistance 

payments on behalf of program participants. 

20. Because HUD pays a portion of the monthly rent for program participants, the 

HCVP contains two types of limitations on the amount of rent that can be charged.  The PHA 

must ensure that the rent being charged is reasonable, i.e., that it is not more than the rent 
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generally charged for comparable units in the private market.  24 C.F.R. §§ 982.4, 982.507(a)(1).  

Separately, the landlord must certify that the rent charged to HCVP participants does not exceed 

the rent charged by that landlord to unassisted tenants in comparable properties.  24 C.F.R. 

§ 982.507(d) 

21. When an HCVP participant locates rental housing in the private market, the 

landlord fills out a Request for Tenancy Approval form (“RFTA”), which is promulgated by 

HUD, specifying the proposed rent and lease term, and submits that form to the local PHA.  In 

the RFTA, the landlord certifies, inter alia, “that the rent charged to the housing choice voucher 

tenant is not more than the rent charged for other unassisted comparable units.”  Ex. A, ¶ 12.   

22. Where a landlord owns more than 4 units in a particular location, the landlord 

must also provide rent information on the RFTA for the landlord’s three “most recently leased 

comparable unassisted units within the premises.”  Id. 

23. After the local PHA approves the RFTA, the landlord and tenant enter into a 

lease.  After the signed lease is provided to the PHA, the landlord enters into a Housing 

Assistance Payments Contract (“HAP”) with the PHA, again using a form promulgated by HUD.   

24. The terms of the HAP require that, during the entire term of the contract, “the rent 

to owner may not exceed rent charged by the owner for comparable unassisted units in the 

premises.”  Ex. B, ¶ 6(d).   

25. The confirmation in paragraph 6(d) of the HAP that the assisted rent charged by 

the owner is not higher than unassisted rents in the owner’s comparable units is distinct from the 

PHA’s determination that the rent is reasonable.  Compare id. ¶  6(a) with id. ¶ 6(d); see also 28 

C.F.R. § 982.507(a). 
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26. By entering into the HAP, the landlord also again certifies that “[t]he rent to 

owner does not exceed rents charged by the owner for rental of comparable unassisted units in 

the premises.”  Ex. B, ¶ 8(c). 

27. The HAP expressly conditions the landlord’s right to receive housing assistance 

payments from the PHA on compliance with all terms of the HAP, including without limitation 

the rent comparability requirements.  Id. ¶ 7(b). 

28. By operation of 24 C.F.R. § 982.507(d), each time a landlord accepts a monthly 

housing assistance payment from the PHA, he or she again certifies “that the rent to owner is not 

more than rent charged by the owner for comparable unassisted units in the premises.” 

29. Thus, as a condition of participation in the Section 8 program, the landlord is 

required to certify that the rent charged to the HCVP participant does not exceed that charged to 

unassisted tenants in comparable units: (a) when the RFTA is filed; (b) when the HAP is 

executed; and (c) each time a housing assistance payment is received. 

THE FALSE CLAIMS ACT 

30. The False Claims Act (“FCA”) prohibits the submission of false or fraudulent 

claims for payment to the United States, as well as a variety of related practices that facilitate 

such claims.  See 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1).   

31. A violation of the FCA occurs, inter alia, when a person “knowingly presents, or 

causes to be presented, a false or fraudulent claim for payment or approval” or “knowingly 

makes, uses, or causes to be made or used, a false record or statement material to a false or 

fraudulent claim.”  31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1)(A)–(B).   

32. For purposes of the FCA, a person acts knowingly if he or she: (1) acts with 

actual knowledge of the information; (2) acts in deliberate ignorance of the truth or falsity of the 
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information; or (3) acts in reckless disregard of the truth or falsity of the information.  31 U.S.C. 

§ 3729(b)(1).  A person need not have acted with a specific intent to defraud to be liable under 

the FCA.  Id. 

DEFENDAN76¶ PAR7ICIPA7ION IN 7HE 6EC7ION 8 PROGRAM 

33. Since approximately 2004, Defendants have participated in the Section 8 

program.   

34. Although the number varies over time, an average of approximately 20% of the 

Defendant Properties – or roughly 19 properties – are leased to HCVP participants. 

35. Each month, Defendants receive a housing assistance payment from the PHA for 

each HCVP participant living in one of the Defendant Properties.  Over the past five years, these 

housing assistance payments to Defendants have averaged over $14,000 per month in aggregate. 

36. Although the housing assistance payments are made to Defendants by the local 

PHA, the funds for those payments come from HUD pursuant to an annual contributions contract 

between the PHA and HUD.  See 24 C.F.R. § 982.151. 

37. Over the most recent six program years, i.e., since July 2015, Defendants have 

received housing assistance payments funded by HUD in excess of $950,000. 

38. As required by the terms of the Section 8 program, each time Defendants entered 

into a new lease with a Section 8 tenant, they certified – first in the RFTA and then in the HAP – 

that the rent charged to that tenant did not exceed the rent charged to unassisted tenants in 

comparable properties. 

39. In addition, each month when Defendants received their housing assistance 

payment from the PHA, they again certified, pursuant to 24 C.F.R. § 982.507(d), that each of 
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their assisted tenants was being charged a rent no higher than the rent charged to unassisted 

tenants in comparable units. 

40. For purposes of these certifications, Defendants considered all Defendant 

Properties that had the same number of bedrooms and bathrooms to be comparable.  Thus, for 

example, the Defendant Properties include approximately 22 properties having 3 bedrooms and 2 

bathrooms.  For purposes of their required certifications, Defendants considered each of those 

properties to be comparable. 

41. Defendants regularly charged rents to Section 8 tenants that exceeded the rents 

paid by unassisted tenants in comparable Defendant Properties.   

42. As a result, Defendants’ repeated certifications that the rents paid by Section 8 

tenants were not greater than the rents paid by unassisted tenants in comparable units were false 

and fraudulent. 

43. Defendants also regularly made false statements in paragraph 12 of the RFTA, 

which requires the owner to list the “most recently leased comparable unassisted units within the 

premises.”  Ex. A, ¶ 12. 

44. It was Defendants’ practice not to list the “most recently leased” comparable 

units, as specified by the RFTA, but rather to include the comparable units with the highest rents. 

45. Defendants made these false statements because they believed that doing so 

would cause the PHA to approve a higher rent for the HCVP tenant than would otherwise be 

approved. 

46. Thus, Defendants knew and intended that their false statements on the RFTA 

would increase the amount of the monthly housing assistance payments, funded by HUD, that 

they would receive from the PHA. 
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SPECIFIC E;AMPLE6 OF DEFENDAN76¶ FAL6E 67A7EMEN76 

47. The allegations in the following paragraphs represent specific examples of 

Defendants’ false statements.  The United States seeks damages and penalties with respect to all 

relevant leases and false statements that may be identified now or in future discovery, not only 

those specifically discussed in this section.   

Property A (N.C.) 

48. On or about April 1, 2018, Lukacs signed, on behalf of Goodfish, an RFTA with 

Section 8 participant N.C. for Property A, a three-bedroom, one-bathroom property.  The RFTA 

included a proposed rent of $1150 per month. 

49. On the RFTA, Defendants were instructed to list the three most recent unassisted 

rentals of comparable properties.  Defendants listed a January 2015 rental with a monthly rent of 

$1101, a November 2013 rental with a monthly rent of $1188, and an October 2008 rental with a 

monthly rate of $1100. 

50. Contrary to Defendants’ statements on the RFTA, these were not the most recent 

rentals of comparable properties.  In fact, there were numerous unassisted leases of comparable 

properties more recent than those listed on the RFTA, including two unassisted leases of 

comparable properties in July and September of 2016, both of which had monthly rents of 

$1000, $150 lower than the rent proposed for N.C.  Defendants also failed to disclose two 

additional leases of comparable properties in 2013 – more recent than the listed October 2008 

rental – that had monthly rents of $925 and $975 respectively. 

51. In addition, one of the properties listed on the RFTA as comparable to Property 

A – the property at 45 Teal Circle – was not comparable at all.  Unlike Property A, a three-

bedroom, one-bath unit of roughly 1225 square feet, 45 Teal Circle is a four-bedroom, one-and-
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a-half-bathroom unit of roughly 1675 square feet, over 35% larger.  Defendants thus fraudulently 

sought to use a much larger property to justify the inflated rent they proposed for N.C. 

52. Based on Defendant’s false statements, the PHA authorized a HAP covering the 

lease between Defendants and N.C. beginning May 1, 2018 with an initial monthly rent of 

$1150.   

53. Contrary to Defendants’ certifications in the RFTA and HAP, the rent specified 

in N.C.’s lease was higher than the rents being charged to unassisted tenants in comparable units.  

54. For each month from May 2018 through at least May 2020, Defendants received 

a housing assistance payment of between $611 and $920 towards N.C.’s monthly rent. 

55. In every one of those 25 months, unassisted tenants in comparable units paid rent 

that was lower than the rent charged to N.C. 

56. As a result, in every one of those months, Defendants’ certification pursuant to 

24 C.F.R. § 982.507(d) was false and fraudulent. 

Property B (A.W.) 

57. On or about June 11, 2019, Lukacs signed an RFTA with Section 8 participant 

A.W. for Property B, a three-bedroom, one-and-a-half-bathroom property.  The RFTA included a 

proposed rent of $1200 per month. 

58. On the RFTA, Defendants were instructed to list the three most recent unassisted 

rentals of comparable properties.  Defendants listed rentals in January, April, and June of 2019, 

each with a rent of $1200 per month. 

59. Contrary to Defendants’ statements on the RFTA, these were not the most recent 

rentals of comparable properties.  Defendants failed to disclose the June 2019 unassisted rental 

of a comparable property, 8 Plover Circle, which had a lower monthly rent of $1000. 
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60. In addition, Defendants misstated the information for one of the listed properties.  

On the RFTA, Defendants listed the January 2019 rental of the property at 36 Heron Court with a 

stated monthly rent of $1200.  In fact, however, the current rent for the property at 36 Heron 

Court was $1150, not $1200.  As a result, Defendants fraudulently concealed the fact that the 

rent on 36 Heron Court was lower than the rent being proposed for A.W. 

61. Based on Defendant’s false statements, the PHA authorized a HAP covering the 

lease between Defendants and A.W. with an initial monthly rent of $1200.   

62. Contrary to Defendants’ certifications in the RFTA and HAP, the rent specified 

in A.W.’s lease was higher than the rents being charged to unassisted tenants in comparable 

units.  

63. For each month from June 2019 through May 2020, Defendants received a 

housing assistance payment of $1139 towards A.W.’s monthly rent. 

64. In every one of those 12 months, unassisted tenants in comparable units paid rent 

that was lower than the rent charged to A.W. 

65. As a result, in every one of those months, Defendants’ certification pursuant to 

24 C.F.R. § 982.507(d) was false. 

SCIENTER 

66. Each time that Defendants falsely certified that a Section 8 participant was not 

being charged a rent higher than that charged to unassisted tenants in comparable units, 

Defendants were either actually aware that their certifications were false or acted in reckless 

disregard or deliberate indifference of the truth or falsity of their certifications. 

67. Defendants were fully aware of the rent being charged on each of the Defendant 

Properties in each month.  As a result, any failure of Defendants to verify the truth of their 
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required certifications of rent comparability was the result of reckless disregard or deliberate 

indifference. 

68. Each time that Defendants submitted false information on an RFTA regarding the 

most recent unassisted rentals of comparable properties, Defendants were either actually aware 

that the information they provided was false or acted in reckless disregard or deliberate 

indifference of the truth or falsity of that information. 

69. Defendants were fully aware of the dates on which comparable properties had 

most recently been leased and of the current rent being charged for each of the Defendant 

Properties.  As a result, the false information provided on the RFTA forms was either provided 

with knowledge of its falsity or was the result of reckless disregard or deliberate indifference. 

HARM TO THE UNITED STATES 

70. As a result of their false statements and false certifications, Defendants entered 

into numerous leases that illegally charged Section 8 tenants higher rents than those being paid 

by unassisted tenants in comparable properties.   

71. As a further result of Defendants’ false statements and false certifications, HUD, 

though the PHA, made monthly housing assistance payments to Defendants that were higher 

than permitted under the terms of the HCVP.   

72. In the absence of these false statements and false certifications, the rents for 

numerous Section 8 participants would have been set at lower monthly amounts, resulting in 

lower housing assistance payments from HUD, through the PHA, to Defendants. 

73. Had HUD been aware of Defendants’ false statements and false certifications, 

HUD would have taken action to either reduce the housing assistance payments made to 

Defendants or to limit or suspend Defendants’ participation in the HCVP.  
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Count I:  False or Fraudulent Claims 
Violations of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1)(A) 

74. The United States repeats and re-alleges each of the foregoing paragraphs. 

75. Defendants knowingly presented or caused to be presented false or fraudulent 

claims to the United States for housing assistance payments under the HCVP in violation of the 

FCA, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1)(A). 

76. The false or fraudulent claims were contained in RFTAs, HAPs, and certifications 

made pursuant to 24 C.F.R. § 982.507(d). 

77. Because of Defendants’ false claims, the United States suffered damages. 

78. Defendants are jointly and severally liable to the United States for treble damages 

under the FCA, in an amount to be determined at trial, plus a civil penalty of $5,500 to $11,000 

for each false claim presented or caused to be presented by Defendants.  

Count II:  False Statements 
Violations of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1)(B) 

79. The United States repeats and re-alleges each of the foregoing paragraphs. 

80. Defendants knowingly made, used, or caused to be made or used, false records or 

statements that were material to claims to the United States for housing assistance payments 

under the HCVP in violation of the FCA, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1)(B). 

81. The false or fraudulent statements were contained in RFTAs, HAPs, and 

certifications made pursuant to 24 C.F.R. § 982.507(d). 

82. The false statements were material to Defendants’ claims for housing assistance 

payments under the HCVP funds in that HUD would not have made or reimbursed the housing 

assistance payments absent the records or statements. 

83. Because of Defendants’ false or fraudulent records or statements, the United 

States suffered damages. 
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84. Defendants are jointly and severally liable to the United States for treble damages 

under the FCA, in an amount to be determined at trial, plus a civil penalty of $5,500 to $11,000 

for each false statement made, used, or caused to be made or used by Defendants.  

Count III:  Fraud 
Federal Common Law 

85. The United States repeats and re-alleges each of the foregoing paragraphs. 

86. Defendants knowingly made false statements that were material to HUD’s 

decisions to permit Defendants to participate in the Section 8 program and to provide Defendants 

with housing assistance payments. 

87. Defendants intended for their false statements to induce HUD to permit 

Defendants to participate in the HCVP and to provide Defendants with housing assistance 

payments. 

88. HUD justifiably relied on Defendants’ false statements. 

89. As a result of HUD’s justifiable reliance on Defendants’ false statements, the 

United States suffered damages, in an amount to be determined at trial, for which Defendants are 

jointly and severally liable. 

Count IV:  Unjust Enrichment 
Federal Common Law 

90. The United States repeats and re-alleges each of the foregoing paragraphs. 

91. HUD conferred a benefit, in the form of housing assistance payments, on 

Defendants. 

92. Defendants appreciated and retained such benefits. 

93. Because of Defendants’ false and fraudulent statements, it would be inequitable to 

permit Defendants to retain these benefits. 
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94. By directly or indirectly obtaining federal funds from HUD to which they were 

not entitled, Defendants were unjustly enriched at the expense of the United States, and are 

jointly and severally liable to account for and pay to the United States such amounts, or the 

proceeds therefrom, which are to be determined at trial. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, the United States respectfully requests that this Court enter judgment in 

favor of the United States and jointly and severally against Defendants as follows: 

A. As to Counts I and II, for treble the amount of the United States’ damages to be 

proven at trial, plus civil penalties as are required by law in the amount of $5,500 

to $11,000 per violation of the False Claims Act; 

B. As to Counts III and IV, compensatory damages in an amount to be proven at 

trial;  

C. Post-judgment interest and costs, as permitted by law; and 

D. Such other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
DAVID C. WEISS  
United States Attorney 
 

 
   By:   /s/ Dylan J. Steinberg                

Dylan J. Steinberg 
Assistant United States Attorney 
1313 N. Market Street 
P.O. Box 2046 
Wilmington, DE 19899-2046  
(302) 573-6277 

Dated: December 18, 2020   Attorney for the United States of America  
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��2WKHU� ��'HVFULEH�2WKHU�6XEVLG\��,QFOXGLQJ�$Q\�6WDWH�RU�/RFDO�6XEVLG\�
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IRUP�HUD-52517����9/2014�
UHI��+DQGERRN�������

3UHYLRXV�HGLWLRQV�DUH�REVROHWH 3DJH���RI��

3ULQW�RU�7\SH�1DPH�RI�2ZQHU�2ZQHU�5HSUHVHQWDWLYH ��3ULQW�RU�7\SH�1DPH�RI�+RXVHKROG�+HDG

6LJQDWXUH ��6LJQDWXUH��+RXVHKROG�+HDG�

%XVLQHVV�$GGUHVV ��3UHVHQW�$GGUHVV�RI�)DPLO\���VWUHHW�DGGUHVV��DSDUWPHQW�QR���FLW\��6WDWH��	�]LS�FRGH�

7HOHSKRQH�1XPEHU������������������������������������������������������������������'DWH��PP�GG�\\\\� ��7HOHSKRQH�1XPEHU 'DWH��PP�GG�\\\\�

��� �2ZQHU
V�&HUWLILFDWLRQV�
D� 7KH�SURJUDP�UHJXODWLRQ�UHTXLUHV�WKH�3+$�WR�FHUWLI\�WKDW�WKH�UHQW�FKDUJHG
WR�WKH�KRXVLQJ�FKRLFH�YRXFKHU�WHQDQW�LV�QRW�PRUH�WKDQ�WKH�UHQW�FKDUJHG�IRU
RWKHU�XQDVVLVWHG�FRPSDUDEOH�XQLWV���Owners of projects with more than 4
units must complete the following section for most recently leased
comparable unassisted units within the premises.

���������$GGUHVV�DQG�XQLW�QXPEHU ��'DWH�5HQWHG �����5HQWDO�$PRXQW

��

��

��

E� 7KH�RZQHU��LQFOXGLQJ�D�SULQFLSDO�RU�RWKHU�LQWHUHVWHG�SDUW\��LV��QRW�WKH
SDUHQW��FKLOG��JUDQGSDUHQW��JUDQGFKLOG��VLVWHU�RU�EURWKHU�RI�DQ\�PHPEHU�RI�WKH
IDPLO\��XQOHVV�WKH�3+$�KDV�GHWHUPLQHG��DQG�KDV�QRWLILHG�WKH�RZQHU�DQG�WKH
IDPLO\�RI�VXFK�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ��WKDW�DSSURYLQJ�OHDVLQJ�RI�WKH�XQLW��QRWZLWKVWDQG�
LQJ�VXFK�UHODWLRQVKLS��ZRXOG�SURYLGH�UHDVRQDEOH�DFFRPPRGDWLRQ�IRU�D�IDPLO\
PHPEHU�ZKR�LV�D�SHUVRQ�ZLWK�GLVDELOLWLHV�

F���&KHFN�RQH�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�

BBBBB��/HDG�EDVHG�SDLQW�GLVFORVXUH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�GR�QRW�DSSO\�EHFDXVH�WKLV
SURSHUW\�ZDV�EXLOW�RQ�RU�DIWHU�-DQXDU\���������

BBBBB��7KH�XQLW��FRPPRQ�DUHDV�VHUYLFLQJ�WKH�XQLW��DQG�H[WHULRU�SDLQWHG
VXUIDFHV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�VXFK�XQLW�RU��FRPPRQ�DUHDV�KDYH�EHHQ�IRXQG�WR�EH
OHDG�EDVHG�SDLQW�IUHH�E\�D�OHDG�EDVHG�SDLQW�LQVSHFWRU�FHUWLILHG�XQGHU�WKH
)HGHUDO�FHUWLILFDWLRQ�SURJUDP�RU�XQGHU�D�IHGHUDOO\�DFFUHGLWHG�6WDWH�FHUWLILFD�
WLRQ�SURJUDP�

BBBBB��$��FRPSOHWHG�VWDWHPHQW�LV�DWWDFKHG�FRQWDLQLQJ�GLVFORVXUH�RI�NQRZQ
LQIRUPDWLRQ�RQ�OHDG�EDVHG�SDLQW�DQG�RU�OHDG�EDVHG�SDLQW�KD]DUGV�LQ�WKH�XQLW�
FRPPRQ�DUHDV�RU�H[WHULRU�SDLQWHG�VXUIDFHV��LQFOXGLQJ�D�VWDWHPHQW��WKDW�WKH
RZQHU�KDV�SURYLGHG�WKH�OHDG�KD]DUG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�SDPSKOHW�WR�WKH�IDPLO\�

��� The PHA has not screened the family’s behavior or suitability for
tenancy.  Such screening is the owner’s own responsibility.

��� 7KH��RZQHU¶V�OHDVH�PXVW�LQFOXGH�ZRUG�IRU�ZRUG�DOO�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH
+8'�WHQDQF\�DGGHQGXP�

��� 7KH�3+$�ZLOO�DUUDQJH�IRU�LQVSHFWLRQ�RI�WKH�XQLW�DQG�ZLOO�QRWLI\�WKH
RZQHU�DQG�IDPLO\�DV�WR�ZKHWKHU�RU�QRW�WKH�XQLW�ZLOO�EH�DSSURYHG�
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Housing Assistance Payments Contract U.S. Department of Housing 
 

and Urban Development  

(HAP Contract)  

Office of Public and Indian Housing  

  

Section 8 Tenant-Based Assistance 
OMB Approval No. 2577- 0169  

Housing Choice Voucher Program  

(Exp. 10/31/2010)  

Privacy Act Statement. The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is authorized to collect the information required on this form by 
Section 8 of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437f). Collection of family members’ names and unit address, and owner’s name and payment 
address is mandatory. The information is used to provide Section 8 tenant-based assistance under the Housing Choice Voucher program in the form 
of housing assistance payments. The information also specifies what utilities and appliances are to be supplied by the owner, and what utilities and 
appliances are to be supplied by the tenant. HUD may disclose this information to Federal, State and local agencies when relevant to civil, criminal, or 
regulatory investigations and prosecutions. It will not be otherwise disclosed or released outside of HUD, except as permitted or required by law. 
Failure to provide any of the information may result in delay or rejection of family or owner participation in the program. 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
Instructions for use of HAP Contract  
This form of Housing Assistance Payments Contract (HAP contract) 
is used to provide Section 8 tenant-based assistance under the 
housing choice voucher program (voucher program) of the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The main 
regulation for this program is 24 Code of Federal Regulations Part 
982.  
The local voucher program is administered by a public housing 
agency (PHA) . The HAP contract is an agreement between the PHA 
and the owner of a unit occupied by an assisted family. The HAP 
contract has three parts: 
 
Part A Contract information (fill-ins). See 
section by section instructions. Part B 
Body of contract  
Part C Tenancy addendum 
 
Use of this form  
Use of this HAP contract is required by HUD. Modification of the 
HAP contract is not permitted. The HAP contract must be word-for-
word in the form prescribed by HUD.  
However, the PHA may choose to add the following:  

Language that prohibits the owner from collecting a security 
deposit in excess of private market practice, or in excess of 
amounts charged by the owner to unassisted tenants. Such a 
prohibition must be added to Part A of the HAP contract. 

 
Language that defines when the housing assistance payment by 
the PHA is deemed received by the owner (e.g., upon mailing 
by the PHA or actual receipt by the owner). Such language 
must be added to Part A of the HAP contract. 

 
To prepare the HAP contract, fill in all contract information in Part A 
of the contract. Part A must then be executed by the owner and the 
PHA.  
Use for special housing types  
In addition to use for the basic Section 8 voucher program, this form 
must also be used for the following “special housing types” which are 
voucher program variants for special needs (see 24 CFR Part 982, 
Subpart M): (1) single room occupancy (SRO) housing; (2) 
congregate housing; (3) group home; (4) shared housing; and (5) 
manufactured home rental by a family that leases the manufactured 
home and space. When this form is used for a special housing type, 
the special housing type shall be specified in Part A of the HAP 
contract, as follows: “This HAP contract is used for the following 
special housing type under HUD regulations for the Section 8 
voucher program: (Insert Name of Special Housing type).” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Previous editions are obsolete                                               Page 1 of 12 

However, this form may not be used for the following special 
housing types: (1) manufactured home space rental by a family that 
owns the manufactured home and leases only the space; (2) 
cooperative housing; and (3) the homeownership option under 
Section 8(y) of the United States Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 
1437f(y)). 
 
How to fill in Part A  
Section by Section Instructions 
 
Section 2:  Tenant  
Enter full name of tenant. 
 
Section 3.  Contract Unit 
Enter address of unit, including apartment number, if any. 
 
Section 4.  Household Members  
Enter full names of all PHA-approved household members. Specify if 
any such person is a live-in aide, which is a person approved by the 
PHA to reside in the unit to provide supportive services for a family 
member who is a person with disabilities. 
 
Section 5.  Initial Lease Term  
Enter first date and last date of initial lease term.  
The initial lease term must be for at least one year. However, the 
PHA may approve a shorter initial lease term if the PHA 
determines that: 
 

Such shorter term would improve housing 
opportunities for the tenant, and 

 
Such shorter term is the prevailing local market 
practice. 

 
Section 6. Initial Rent to Owner  
Enter the amount of the monthly rent to owner during the initial lease 
term. The PHA must determine that the rent to owner is reasonable in 
comparison to rent for other comparable unassisted units. During the 
initial lease term, the owner may not raise the rent to owner. 
 
Section 7.  Housing Assistance Payment  
Enter the initial amount of the monthly housing assistance 
payment. 
 
 
Section 8. Utilities and Appliances. 
The lease and the HAP contract must specify what utilities and 
appliances are to be supplied by the owner, and what  
utilities and appliances are to be supplied by the tenant. Fill in 
section 8 to show who is responsible to provide or pay for utilities 
and appliances. 
 
 
 

                     form HUD-52641 (8/2009) 
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Housing Assistance Payments Contract U.S. Department of Housing 

 

and Urban Development  

(HAP Contract)  

Office of Public and Indian Housing  

Section 8 Tenant-Based Assistance  

 
 

Housing Choice Voucher Program  
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Part A of the HAP Contract: Contract Information 
 
(To prepare the contract, fill out all contract information in Part A.)  
1.     Contents of Contract  

This HAP contract has three parts: 
Part A: Contract Information 

Part B: Body of Contract Part 
C: Tenancy Addendum 

 
2. Tenant  
 
 
 
 
 
3. Contract Unit  
 
 
 
 
 
4. Household  
 

The following persons may reside in the unit. Other persons may not be added to the household without prior written approval of 
the owner and the PHA. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Initial Lease Term  
 

The initial lease term begins on (mm/dd/yyyy): ______________________________  
 

The initial lease term ends on (mm/dd/yyyy): ________________________________  
 
6. Initial Rent to Owner   

The initial rent to owner is: $ __________________________   
During the initial lease term, the owner may not raise the rent to owner.  

 
 
7. Initial Housing Assistance Payment  
 
The HAP contract term commences on the first day of the initial lease term. At the beginning of the HAP contract term, the amount 
of the housing assistance payment by the PHA to the owner is $ __________________ per month.  
The amount of the monthly housing assistance payment by the PHA to the owner is subject to change during the HAP contract term 
in accordance with HUD requirements. 
 
 
 
 
Previous editions are obsolete 
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___________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
8.     Utilities and Appliances  
The owner shall provide or pay for the utilities and appliances indicated below by an “ O”. The tenant shall provide or pay for the utilities and appliances indicated 
below by a “T”. Unless otherwise specified below, the owner shall pay for all utilities and appliances provided by the owner. 

Item   Specify fuel type   Provided by Paid by 

Heating  Natural gas Bottle gas Oil or Electric Coal or Other   
        

Cooking  Natural gas Bottle gas Oil or Electric Coal or Other   
        

Water Heating  Natural gas Bottle gas Oil or Electric Coal or Other   
        

Other Electric        
        

Water        
        

Sewer        
        

Trash Collection        
        

Air Conditioning        
        

Refrigerator        
        

Range/Microwave        
        

Other (specify)        
        

Signatures:        
Public Housing Agency  Owner   

____________________________________________________ _________________________________________________ 
Print or Type Name of PHA    Print or Type Name of Owner  

__________________________________________________________________________ ______________________________________________________________________ 
Signature    Signature   

__________________________________________________________________________ ______________________________________________________________________ 
Print or Type Name and Title of Signatory  Print or Type Name and Title of Signatory  

__________________________________________________________________________ ______________________________________________________________________ 
Date (mm/dd/yyyy)    Date (mm/dd/yyyy)   

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Mail Payments to: _________________________________________________  
Name 

 
 

______________________________________________________________________  
Address (street, city, State, Zip) 
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Housing Assistance Payments Contract  
(HAP Contract) 
Section 8 Tenant-Based Assistance 
Housing Choice Voucher Program 

U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
Office of Public and Indian Housing 

 
___________________________________________________________________________  
Part B of HAP Contract: Body of Contract 
 
1. Purpose   

a. This is a HAP contract between the PHA and the 
owner. The HAP contract is entered to provide 
assistance for the family under the Section 8 voucher 
program (see HUD program regulations at  
24 Code of Federal Regulations Part 982).  

b. The HAP contract only applies to the household and 
contract unit specified in Part A of the HAP 
contract.   

c. During the HAP contract term, the PHA will pay 
housing assistance payments to the owner in 
accordance with the HAP contract.  

d. The family will reside in the contract unit with 
assistance under the Section 8 voucher program. The 
housing assistance payments by the PHA assist the 
tenant to lease the contract unit from the owner for 
occupancy by the family.  

 
2. Lease of Contract Unit   

a. The owner has leased the contract unit to the tenant 
for occupancy by the family with assistance under 
the Section 8 voucher program.   

b. The PHA has approved leasing of the unit in 
accordance with requirements of the Section 8 
voucher program.  

c. The lease for the contract unit must include word-
for-word all provisions of the tenancy addendum 
required by HUD (Part C of the HAP contract).  

d. The owner certifies that:  
(1) The owner and the tenant have entered into a 

lease of the contract unit that includes all 
provisions of the tenancy addendum.   

(2) The lease is in a standard form that is used in 
the locality by the owner and that is generally 
used for other unassisted tenants in the 
premises.   

(3) The lease is consistent with State and local 
law.   

e. The owner is responsible for screening the family’s 
behavior or suitability for tenancy. The PHA is not 
responsible for such screening. The PHA has no 
liability or responsibility to the owner or other 
persons for the family’s behavior or the family’s 
conduct in tenancy.  

 
3. Maintenance, Utilities, and Other Services   

a. The owner must maintain the contract unit and 
premises in accordance with the housing quality 
standards (HQS).  

b. The owner must provide all utilities needed to 
comply with the HQS.   

c. If the owner does not maintain the contract unit in 
accordance with the HQS, or fails to provide all 
utilities needed to comply with the HQS, the PHA 
may exercise any available remedies. PHA remedies  

 
for such breach include recovery of overpayments, 
suspension of housing assistance payments, 
abatement or other reduction of housing assistance 
payments, termination of housing assistance 
payments, and termination of the HAP contract. The 
PHA may not exercise such remedies against the 
owner because of an HQS breach for which the 
family is responsible, and that is not caused by the 
owner.  

d. The PHA shall not make any housing assistance 
payments if the contract unit does not meet the HQS, 
unless the owner corrects the defect within the 
period specified by the PHA and the PHA verifies 
the correction. If a defect is life threatening, the 
owner must correct the defect within no more than 
24 hours. For other defects, the owner must correct 
the defect within the period specified by the PHA.  

e. The PHA may inspect the contract unit and premises 
at such times as the PHA determines necessary, to 
ensure that the unit is in accordance with the HQS.  

f. The PHA must notify the owner of any HQS defects 
shown by the inspection.   

g. The owner must provide all housing services as 
agreed to in the lease.  

 
4. Term of HAP Contract   

a. Relation to lease term. The term of the HAP 
contract begins on the first day of the initial term of 
the lease, and terminates on the last day of the term 
of the lease (including the initial lease term and any 
extensions).   

b. When HAP contract terminates.  
(1)    The HAP contract terminates automatically if   

the lease is terminated by the owner or the 
tenant.  

(2) The PHA may terminate program assistance 
for the family for any grounds authorized in 
accordance with HUD requirements. If the 
PHA terminates program assistance for the 
family, the HAP contract terminates 
automatically.   

(3) If the family moves from the contract unit, the 
HAP contract terminates automatically.   

(4) The HAP contract terminates automatically 180 
calendar days after the last housing assistance 
payment to the owner.   

(5) The PHA may terminate the HAP contract if 
the PHA determines, in accordance with HUD 
requirements, that available program funding is 
not sufficient to support continued assistance 
for families in the program.   

(6) The HAP contract terminates automatically upon the 
death of a single member household, including single 
member households with a live-in aide.  
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(7) The PHA may terminate the HAP contract if the 
PHA determines that the contract unit does not 
provide adequate space in accordance with the 
HQS because of an increase in family size or a 
change in family composition.   

(8) If the family breaks up, the PHA may terminate 
the HAP contract, or may continue housing 
assistance payments on behalf of family members 
who remain in the contract unit.   

(9) The PHA may terminate the HAP contract if the 
PHA determines that the unit does not meet all 
requirements of the HQS, or determines that the 
owner has otherwise breached the HAP contract.   

5. Provision and Payment for Utilities and Appliances   
a. The lease must specify what utilities are to be provided 

or paid by the owner or the tenant.   
b. The lease must specify what appliances are to be pro-

vided or paid by the owner or the tenant.   
c. Part A of the HAP contract specifies what utilities and 

appliances are to be provided or paid by the owner or 
the tenant. The lease shall be consistent with the HAP 
contract.  

 
6. Rent to Owner: Reasonable Rent   

a. During the HAP contract term, the rent to owner may at 
no time exceed the reasonable rent for the contract unit 
as most recently determined or redetermined by the 
PHA in accordance with HUD requirements.  

b. The PHA must determine whether the rent to owner is 
reasonable in comparison to rent for other comparable 
unassisted units. To make this determination, the PHA 
must consider:  
(1) The location, quality, size, unit type, and age of 

the contract unit; and   
(2) Any amenities, housing services, maintenance 

and utilities provided and paid by the owner.   
c. The PHA must redetermine the reasonable rent when 

required in accordance with HUD requirements. The 
PHA may redetermine the reasonable rent at any time.  

d. During the HAP contract term, the rent to owner may 
not exceed rent charged by the owner for comparable 
unassisted units in the premises. The owner must give 
the PHA any information requested by the PHA on 
rents charged by the owner for other units in the 
premises or elsewhere.  

 
7. PHA Payment to Owner   

a. When paid   
(1) During the term of the HAP contract, the PHA 

must make monthly housing assistance payments 
to the owner on behalf of the family at the 
beginning of each month.   

(2) The PHA must pay housing assistance payments 
promptly when due to the owner.   

(3) If housing assistance payments are not paid 
promptly when due after the first two calendar 
months of the HAP contract term, the PHA shall 
pay the owner penalties if all of the following 
circumstances apply: (i) Such penalties are in 
accordance with generally accepted practices and 
law, as applicable in the local housing market,  

governing penalties for late payment of rent by a 
tenant; (ii) It is the owner’s practice to charge 
such penalties for assisted and unassisted tenants; 
and (iii) The owner also charges such penalties 
against the tenant for late payment of family rent 
to owner. However, the PHA shall not be 
obligated to pay any late payment penalty if HUD 
determines that late payment by the PHA is due 
to factors beyond the PHA’s control. Moreover, 
the PHA shall not be obligated to pay any late 
payment penalty if housing assistance payments 
by the PHA are delayed or denied as a remedy for 
owner breach of the HAP contract (including any 
of the following PHA remedies: recovery of 
overpayments, suspension of housing assistance 
payments, abatement or reduction of housing 
assistance payments, termination of housing 
assistance payments and termination of the 
contract).  

(4) Housing assistance payments shall only be paid 
to the owner while the family is residing in the 
contract unit during the term of the HAP contract. 
The PHA shall not pay a housing assistance 
payment to the owner for any month after the 
month when the family moves out.   

b. Owner compliance with HAP contract. Unless the 
owner has complied with all provisions of the HAP 
contract, the owner does not have a right to receive 
housing assistance payments under the HAP contract.  

c. Amount of PHA payment to owner  
(1) The amount of the monthly PHA housing 

assistance payment to the owner shall be 
determined by the PHA in accordance with HUD 
requirements for a tenancy under the voucher 
program.   

(2) The amount of the PHA housing assistance 
payment is subject to change during the HAP 
contract term in accordance with HUD 
requirements. The PHA must notify the family 
and the owner of any changes in the amount of 
the housing assistance payment.   

(3) The housing assistance payment for the first 
month of the HAP contract term shall be pro-
rated for a partial month.   

d. Application of payment. The monthly housing 
assistance payment shall be credited against the 
monthly rent to owner for the contract unit.   

e. Limit of PHA responsibility.  
(1) The PHA is only responsible for making housing 

assistance payments to the owner in accordance 
with the HAP contract and HUD requirements for 
a tenancy under the voucher program.   

(2) The PHA shall not pay any portion of the rent to 
owner in excess of the housing assistance 
payment. The PHA shall not pay any other claim 
by the owner against the family.   

f. Overpayment to owner. If the PHA determines that 
the owner is not entitled to the housing assistance 
payment or any part of it, the PHA, in addition to other 
remedies, may deduct the amount of the overpayment 
from any amounts due the owner (including amounts 
due under any other Section 8 assistance contract).   

8. Owner Certification  
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During the term of this contract, the owner certifies that:  
a. The owner is maintaining the contract unit and premises in 

accordance with the HQS.  
b. The contract unit is leased to the tenant. The lease includes 

the tenancy addendum (Part C of the HAP contract), 
and is in accordance with the HAP contract and 
program requirements. The owner has provided the 
lease to the PHA, including any revisions of the lease.  

c. The rent to owner does not exceed rents charged by the 
owner for rental of comparable unassisted units in the 
premises.  

d. Except for the rent to owner, the owner has not 
received and will not receive any payments or other 
consideration (from the family, the PHA, HUD, or any 
other public or private source) for rental of the contract 
unit during the HAP contract term.   

e. The family does not own or have any interest in the 
contract unit.  

f. To the best of the owner’s knowledge, the members of 
the family reside in the contract unit, and the unit is the 
family’s only residence.  

g. The owner (including a principal or other interested 
party) is not the parent, child, grandparent, grandchild, 
sister, or brother of any member of the family, unless 
the PHA has determined (and has notified the owner 
and the family of such determination) that approving 
rental of the unit, notwithstanding such relationship, 
would provide reasonable accommodation for a family 
member who is a person with disabilities.  

 
9. Prohibition of Discrimination. In accordance with 
applicable equal opportunity statutes, Executive Orders, 
and regulations:   

a. The owner must not discriminate against any person 
because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, 
age, familial status, or disability in connection with the 
HAP contract.  

b. The owner must cooperate with the PHA and HUD in 
conducting equal opportunity compliance reviews and 
complaint investigations in connection with the HAP 
contract.  

 
10. Owner’s Breach of HAP Contract   

a. Any of the following actions by the owner (including a 
principal or other interested party) is a breach of the 
HAP contract by the owner:   
(1) If the owner has violated any obligation under the 

HAP contract, including the owner’s obligation 
to maintain the unit in accordance with the HQS.   

(2) If the owner has violated any obligation under 
any other housing assistance payments contract 
under Section 8.   

(3) If the owner has committed fraud, bribery or any 
other corrupt or criminal act in connection with 
any Federal housing assistance program.   

(4) For projects with mortgages insured by HUD or 
loans made by HUD, if the owner has failed to 
comply with the regulations for the applicable 
mortgage insurance or loan program, with the 
mortgage or mortgage note, or with the 
regulatory agreement; or if the owner has 
committed fraud, bribery or any other corrupt or 
criminal act in connection with the mortgage or 
loan.  

 
(5) If the owner has engaged in any drug-related 

criminal activity or any violent criminal activity.   
b. If the PHA determines that a breach has occurred, the 

PHA may exercise any of its rights and remedies under 
the HAP contract, or any other available rights and 
remedies for such breach. The PHA shall notify the 
owner of such determination, including a brief 
statement of the reasons for the determination. The 
notice by the PHA to the owner may require the owner 
to take corrective action, as verified or determined by 
the PHA, by a deadline prescribed in the notice.   

c. The PHA’s rights and remedies for owner breach of the 
HAP contract include recovery of overpayments, 
suspension of housing assistance payments, abatement 
or other reduction of housing assistance payments, 
termination of housing assistance payments, and 
termination of the HAP contract.   

d. The PHA may seek and obtain additional relief by 
judicial order or action, including specific performance, 
other injunctive relief or order for damages.   

e. Even if the family continues to live in the contract unit, 
the PHA may exercise any rights and remedies for 
owner breach of the HAP contract.  

f. The PHA’s exercise or non-exercise of any right or 
remedy for owner breach of the HAP contract is not a 
waiver of the right to exercise that or any other right or 
remedy at any time.  

 
11. PHA and HUD Access to Premises and Owner’s Records  

a. The owner must provide any information pertinent to 
the HAP contract that the PHA or HUD may 
reasonably require.   

b. The PHA, HUD and the Comptroller General of the 
United States shall have full and free access to the 
contract unit and the premises, and to all accounts and 
other records of the owner that are relevant to the HAP 
contract, including the right to examine or audit the 
records and to make copies.   

c. The owner must grant such access to computerized or 
other electronic records, and to any computers, equip-
ment or facilities containing such records, and must 
provide any information or assistance needed to access 
the records.  

 
12. Exclusion of Third Party Rights  

a. The family is not a party to or third party beneficiary of 
Part B of the HAP contract. The family may not 
enforce any provision of Part B, and may not exercise 
any right or remedy against the owner or PHA under 
Part B.  

b. The tenant or the PHA may enforce the tenancy 
addendum (Part C of the HAP contract) against the 
owner, and may exercise any right or remedy against 
the owner under the tenancy addendum.  

c. The PHA does not assume any responsibility for injury 
to, or any liability to, any person injured as a result of 
the owner’s action or failure to act in connection with 
management of the contract unit or the premises or with 
implementation of the HAP contract, or as a result of 
any other action or failure to act by the owner.   

d. The owner is not the agent of the PHA, and the HAP 
contract does not create or affect any relationship 
between the PHA and any lender to the owner or any 
suppliers, employees, contractors or subcontractors 
used by the owner in connection with management of  
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the contract unit or the premises or with 
implementation of the HAP contract. 

 
13. Conflict of Interest  

a. “Covered individual” means a person or entity who is a 
member of any of the following classes:   
(1) Any present or former member or officer of the 

PHA (except a PHA commissioner who is a 
participant in the program);   

(2) Any employee of the PHA, or any contractor, 
sub-contractor or agent of the PHA, who 
formulates policy or who influences decisions 
with respect to the program;   

(3) Any public official, member of a governing body, 
or State or local legislator, who exercises 
functions or responsibilities with respect to the 
program; or   

(4) Any member of the Congress of the United 
States.   

b. A covered individual may not have any direct or 
indirect interest in the HAP contract or in any benefits 
or payments under the contract (including the interest 
of an immediate family member of such covered 
individual) while such person is a covered individual or 
during one year thereafter.   

c. “Immediate family member” means the spouse, parent 
(including a stepparent), child (including a stepchild), 
grandparent, grandchild, sister or brother (including a 
stepsister or stepbrother) of any covered individual.  

d. The owner certifies and is responsible for assuring that 
no person or entity has or will have a prohibited 
interest, at execution of the HAP contract, or at any 
time during the HAP contract term.  

e. If a prohibited interest occurs, the owner shall promptly 
and fully disclose such interest to the PHA and HUD.   

f. The conflict of interest prohibition under this section 
may be waived by the HUD field office for good cause.  

g. No member of or delegate to the Congress of the 
United States or resident commissioner shall be 
admitted to any share or part of the HAP contract or to 
any benefits which may arise from it.  

 
14. Assignment of the HAP Contract   

a. The owner may not assign the HAP contract to a new 
owner without the prior written consent of the PHA.  

b. If the owner requests PHA consent to assign the HAP 
contract to a new owner, the owner shall supply any 
information as required by the PHA pertinent to the 
proposed assignment.  

c. The HAP contract may not be assigned to a new owner 
that is debarred, suspended or subject to a limited 
denial of participation under HUD regulations (see 24 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 24).  

d. The HAP contract may not be assigned to a new owner 
if HUD has prohibited such assignment because:   
(1) The Federal government has instituted an 

administrative or judicial action against the 
owner or proposed new owner for violation of the 
Fair Housing Act or other Federal equal 
opportunity requirements, and such action is 
pending; or   

(2) A court or administrative agency has determined 
that the owner or proposed new owner violated  

the Fair Housing Act or other Federal equal 
opportunity requirements.  

e. The HAP contract may not be assigned to a new owner 
if the new owner (including a principal or other 
interested party) is the parent, child, grandparent, 
grandchild, sister or brother of any member of the 
family, unless the PHA has determined (and has 
notified the family of such determination) that 
approving the assignment, notwithstanding such 
relationship, would provide reasonable accommodation 
for a family member who is a person with disabilities.   

f. The PHA may deny approval to assign the HAP 
contract if the owner or proposed new owner (including 
a principal or other interested party):   
(1) Has violated obligations under a housing assistance 

payments contract under Section 8;  
(2) Has committed fraud, bribery or any other corrupt 

or criminal act in connection with any Federal 
housing program;  

(3) Has engaged in any drug-related criminal activity 
or any violent criminal activity;   

(4) Has a history or practice of non-compliance with 
the HQS for units leased under the Section 8 
tenant-based programs, or non-compliance with 
applicable housing standards for units leased with 
project-based Section 8 assistance or for units 
leased under any other Federal housing program;   

(5) Has a history or practice of failing to terminate 
tenancy of tenants assisted under any Federally 
assisted housing program for activity engaged in 
by the tenant, any member of the household, a 
guest or another person under the control of any 
member of the household that:   
(a) Threatens the right to peaceful enjoyment 
of the premises by other residents;   
(b) Threatens the health or safety of other 

residents, of employees of the PHA, or of 
owner employees or other persons engaged in 
management of the housing;   

(c) Threatens the health or safety of, or the 
right to peaceful enjoyment of their residents 
by, persons residing in the immediate vicinity of 
the premises; or   
(d) Is drug-related criminal activity or 

violent criminal activity;   
(6) Has a history or practice of renting units that fail to 

meet State or local housing codes; or   
(7) Has not paid State or local real estate taxes, fines or 

assessments.   
g. The new owner must agree to be bound by and comply 

with the HAP contract. The agreement must be in 
writing, and in a form acceptable to the PHA. The new 
owner must give the PHA a copy of the executed 
agreement.  

 
15. Foreclosure.  In the case of any foreclosure, the immediate   
successor in interest in the property pursuant to the foreclosure 
shall assume such interest subject to the lease between the prior 
owner and the tenant and to the HAP contract between the prior 
owner and the PHA for the occupied unit. This provision does not 
affect any State or local law that provides longer time periods or 
other additional protections for tenants. This provision will sunset  
on December 31, 2012 unless extended by law. 
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16. Written Notices. Any notice by the PHA or the owner 
in connection with this contract must be in writing.  
 
 
 
17. Entire Agreement: Interpretation   

a. The HAP contract contains the entire agreement between 
the owner and the PHA.  

b The HAP contract shall be interpreted and implemented 
in accordance with all statutory requirements, and with 
all HUD requirements, including the HUD program 
regulations at 24 Code of Federal Regulations Part 982.  
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Housing Assistance Payments Contract  
(HAP Contract) 
Section 8 Tenant-Based Assistance 
Housing Choice Voucher Program 

U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
Office of Public and Indian Housing 

 
___________________________________________________________________________  
Part C of HAP Contract: Tenancy Addendum 
 
1. Section 8 Voucher Program   

a. The owner is leasing the contract unit to the tenant 
for occupancy by the tenant’s family with assistance 
for a tenancy under the Section 8 housing choice 
voucher program (voucher program) of the United 
States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD).   

b. The owner has entered into a Housing Assistance 
Payments Contract (HAP contract) with the PHA 
under the voucher program. Under the HAP 
contract, the PHA will make housing assistance 
payments to the owner to assist the tenant in leasing 
the unit from the owner.  

 
2. Lease   

a. The owner has given the PHA a copy of the lease, 
including any revisions agreed by the owner and the 
tenant. The owner certifies that the terms of the lease 
are in accordance with all provisions of the HAP 
contract and that the lease includes the tenancy 
addendum.   

b. The tenant shall have the right to enforce the 
tenancy addendum against the owner. If there is any 
conflict between the tenancy addendum and any 
other provisions of the lease, the language of the 
tenancy addendum shall control.  

 
3. Use of Contract Unit   

a. During the lease term, the family will reside in the 
contract unit with assistance under the voucher 
program.  

b. The composition of the household must be approved 
by the PHA. The family must promptly inform the 
PHA of the birth, adoption or court-awarded custody 
of a child. Other persons may not be added to the 
household without prior written approval of the 
owner and the PHA.   

c. The contract unit may only be used for residence by 
the PHA-approved household members. The unit 
must be the family’s only residence. Members of the 
household may engage in legal profit making 
activities incidental to primary use of the unit for 
residence by members of the family.   

d. The tenant may not sublease or let the unit.  
e. The tenant may not assign the lease or transfer the 

unit.  
 
4. Rent to Owner   

a. The initial rent to owner may not exceed the amount 
approved by the PHA in accordance with HUD 
requirements.   

b. Changes in the rent to owner shall be determined by 
the provisions of the lease. However, the owner may 
not raise the rent during the initial term of the lease.  

 
c. During the term of the lease (including the initial 

term of the lease and any extension term), the rent to 
owner may at no time exceed:  
(1) The reasonable rent for the unit as most 

recently determined or redetermined by the 
PHA in accordance with HUD requirements, 
or   

(2) Rent charged by the owner for comparable 
unassisted units in the premises.  

 
5. Family Payment to Owner   

a. The family is responsible for paying the owner any 
portion of the rent to owner that is not covered by 
the PHA housing assistance payment.  

b. Each month, the PHA will make a housing 
assistance payment to the owner on behalf of the 
family in accordance with the HAP contract. The 
amount of the monthly housing assistance payment 
will be determined by the PHA in accordance with 
HUD requirements for a tenancy under the Section 8 
voucher program.  

c. The monthly housing assistance payment shall be 
credited against the monthly rent to owner for the 
contract unit.  

d. The tenant is not responsible for paying the portion 
of rent to owner covered by the PHA housing 
assistance payment under the HAP contract between 
the owner and the PHA. A PHA failure to pay the 
housing assistance payment to the owner is not a 
violation of the lease. The owner may not terminate 
the tenancy for nonpayment of the PHA housing 
assistance payment.  

e. The owner may not charge or accept, from the 
family or from any other source, any payment for 
rent of the unit in addition to the rent to owner. Rent 
to owner includes all housing services, maintenance, 
utilities and appliances to be provided and paid by 
the owner in accordance with the lease.   

f. The owner must immediately return any excess rent 
payment to the tenant.  

 
6. Other Fees and Charges   

a. Rent to owner does not include cost of any meals or 
supportive services or furniture which may be 
provided by the owner.  

b. The owner may not require the tenant or family 
members to pay charges for any meals or supportive 
services or furniture which may be provided by the 
owner. Nonpayment of any such charges is not 
grounds for termination of tenancy.   

c. The owner may not charge the tenant extra amounts 
for items customarily included in rent to owner in 
the locality, or provided at no additional cost to 
unsubsidized tenants in the premises.  

 
7. Maintenance, Utilities, and Other Services   

a. Maintenance  
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(1) The owner must maintain the unit and premises 
in accordance with the HQS.  

(2) Maintenance and replacement (including 
redecoration) must be in accordance with the 
standard practice for the building concerned as 
established by the owner. 

 
b. Utilities and appliances  

(1) The owner must provide all utilities needed to 
comply with the HQS.   

(2) The owner is not responsible for a breach of 
the HQS caused by the tenant’s failure to:   
(a) Pay for any utilities that are to be paid by 

the tenant.   
(b) Provide and maintain any appliances 

that are to be provided by the tenant.   
c. Family damage. The owner is not responsible for a 

breach of the HQS because of damages beyond 
normal wear and tear caused by any member of the 
household or by a guest.  

d. Housing services. The owner must provide all 
housing services as agreed to in the lease.  

 
8. Termination of Tenancy by Owner   

a. Requirements. The owner may only terminate the 
tenancy in accordance with the lease and HUD 
requirements.   

b. Grounds. During the term of the lease (the initial 
term of the lease or any extension term), the owner 
may only terminate the tenancy because of:  
(1) Serious or repeated violation of the lease;   
(2) Violation of Federal, State, or local law that 

imposes obligations on the tenant in 
connection with the occupancy or use of the 
unit and the premises;   

(3) Criminal activity or alcohol abuse (as 
provided in paragraph c); or   

(4) Other good cause (as provided in paragraph 
d).   

c. Criminal activity or alcohol abuse.  
(1) The owner may terminate the tenancy during 

the term of the lease if any member of the 
household, a guest or another person under a 
resident’s control commits any of the 
following types of criminal activity:   
(a) Any criminal activity that threatens the 

health or safety of, or the right to 
peaceful enjoyment of the premises by, 
other residents (including property 
management staff residing on the 
premises);   

(b) Any criminal activity that threatens the 
health or safety of, or the right to 
peaceful enjoyment of their residences 
by, persons residing in the immediate 
vicinity of the premises;   

(c) Any violent criminal activity on or near 
the premises; or   

(d) Any drug-related criminal activity on or 
near the premises.  

(2) The owner may terminate the tenancy during 
the term of the lease if any member of the 
household is:   
(a) Fleeing to avoid prosecution, or custody 

or confinement after conviction, for a 
crime, or attempt to commit a crime, that 
is a felony under the laws of the place 
from which the individual flees, or that, 
in the case of the State of New Jersey, is   
a high misdemeanor; or   

(b) Violating a condition of probation or 
parole under Federal or State law.   

(3) The owner may terminate the tenancy for 
criminal activity by a household member in 
accordance with this section if the owner 
determines that the household member has 
committed the criminal activity, regardless of 
whether the household member has been 
arrested or convicted for such activity.   

(4) The owner may terminate the tenancy during 
the term of the lease if any member of the 
household has engaged in abuse of alcohol 
that threatens the health, safety or right to 
peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other 
residents.   

d. Other good cause for termination of tenancy  
(1) During the initial lease term, other good cause 

for termination of tenancy must be something 
the family did or failed to do.   

(2) During the initial lease term or during any 
extension term, other good cause may include:   
(a) Disturbance of neighbors,   
(b) Destruction of property, or   
(c) Living or housekeeping habits that cause 

damage to the unit or premises.   
(3) After the initial lease term, such good cause 

may include:   
(a) The tenant’s failure to accept the owner’s 

offer of a new lease or revision;   
(b) The owner’s desire to use the unit for 

personal or family use or for a purpose 
other than use as a residential rental unit; 
or   

(c) A business or economic reason for 
termination of the tenancy (such as sale of 
the property, renovation of the unit, the 
owner’s desire to rent the unit for a higher 
rent).   

(5) The examples of other good cause in this 
paragraph do not preempt any State or local 
laws to the contrary.  

 
(6) In the case of an owner who is an immediate 

successor in interest pursuant to foreclosure   
during the term of the lease, requiring the 
tenant to vacate the property prior to sale shall 
not constitute other good cause, except that the 
owner may terminate the tenancy effective on 
the date of transfer of the unit to the owner if 
the owner: (a) will occupy the unit as a 
primary residence; and (b) has provided the 
tenant a notice to vacate at least 90 days before 
the effective date of such notice. This 
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provision shall not affect any State or local law 
that provides for longer time periods or 
addition protections for tenants. This  
provision will sunset on December 31, 2012 
unless extended by law. 

 
e. Protections for Victims of Abuse.  
 

(1) An incident or incidents of actual or threatened 
domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking will 
not be construed as serious or repeated violations of 
the lease or other “good cause” for termination of 
the assistance, tenancy, or occupancy rights of such 
a victim.  

 
(2) Criminal activity directly relating to abuse, 

engaged in by a member of a tenant’s household or 
any guest or other person under the tenant’s 
control, shall not be cause for termination of 
assistance, tenancy, or occupancy rights if the 
tenant or an immediate member of the tenant’s 
family is the victim or threatened victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking.  

 
(3) Notwithstanding any restrictions on admission, 

occupancy, or terminations of occupancy or 
assistance, or any Federal, State or local law to the 
contrary, a PHA, owner or manager may 
“bifurcate” a lease, or otherwise remove a 
household member from a lease, without regard to 
whether a household member is a signatory to the 
lease, in order to evict, remove, terminate 
occupancy rights, or terminate assistance to any 
individual who is a tenant or lawful occupant and 
who engages in criminal acts of physical violence 
against family members or others. This action may 
be taken without evicting, removing, terminating 
assistance to, or otherwise penalizing the victim of 
the violence who is also a tenant or lawful 
occupant. Such eviction, removal, termination of 
occupancy rights, or termination of assistance shall 
be effected in accordance with the procedures 
prescribed by Federal, State, and local law for the 
termination of leases or assistance under the 
housing choice voucher program.  

 
(4) Nothing in this section may be construed to limit 

the authority of a public housing agency, owner, or 
manager, when notified, to honor court orders 
addressing rights of access or control of the 
property, including civil protection orders issued to 
protect the victim and issued to address the 
distribution or possession of property among the 
household members in cases where a family breaks 
up.  

 
(5) Nothing in this section limits any otherwise 

available authority of an owner or manager to evict 
or the public housing agency to terminate 
assistance to a tenant for any violation of a lease 
not premised on the act or acts of violence in 
question against the tenant or a member of the 
tenant’s household, provided that the owner, 
manager, or public housing agency does not subject 
an individual who is or has been a victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking to a  

more demanding standard than other tenants in 
determining whether to evict or terminate. 

 
(6) Nothing in this section may be construed to limit 

the authority of an owner or manager to evict, or 
the public housing agency to terminate assistance, 
to any tenant if the owner, manager, or public 
housing agency can demonstrate an actual and 
imminent threat to other tenants or those employed 
at or providing service to the property if the tenant 
is not evicted or terminated from assistance.  

 
(7) Nothing in this section shall be construed to 

supersede any provision of any Federal, State, or 
local law that provides greater protection than this 
section for victims of domestic violence, dating 
violence, or stalking.  

 
f. Eviction by court action. The owner may only evict the 

tenant by a court action.  
 

g. Owner notice of grounds  
(1) At or before the beginning of a court action to 

evict the tenant, the owner must give the 
tenant a notice that specifies the grounds for 
termination of tenancy. The notice may be 
included in or combined with any owner 
eviction notice.   

(2) The owner must give the PHA a copy of any 
owner eviction notice at the same time the 
owner notifies the tenant.   

(3) Eviction notice means a notice to vacate, or a 
complaint or other initial pleading used to 
begin an eviction action under State or local 
law.  

 
9. Lease: Relation to HAP Contract  
If the HAP contract terminates for any reason, the lease terminates 
automatically. 
 
10.    PHA Termination of Assistance  
The PHA may terminate program assistance for the family for any 
grounds authorized in accordance with HUD requirements. If the PHA 
terminates program assistance for the family, the lease terminates 
automatically. 
 
11.    Family Move Out  
The tenant must notify the PHA and the owner before the family moves 
out of the unit. 
 
12. Security Deposit  

a. The owner may collect a security deposit from the 
tenant. (However, the PHA may prohibit the owner 
from collecting a security deposit in excess of 
private market practice, or in excess of amounts 
charged by the owner to unassisted tenants. Any 
such PHA-required restriction must be specified in 
the HAP contract.)  

b. When the family moves out of the contract unit, the 
owner, subject to State and local law, may use the 
security deposit, including any interest on the 
deposit, as reimbursement for any unpaid rent 
payable by the tenant, any damages to the unit or 
any other amounts that the tenant owes under the 
lease.  
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c. The owner must give the tenant a list of all items 
charged against the security deposit, and the amount 
of each item. After deducting the amount, if any, 
used to reimburse the owner, the owner must 
promptly refund the full amount of the unused 
balance to the tenant.   

d. If the security deposit is not sufficient to cover 
amounts the tenant owes under the lease, the owner 
may collect the balance from the tenant.  

 
13.   Prohibition of Discrimination 
In accordance with applicable equal opportunity statutes, Executive 
Orders, and regulations, the owner must not discriminate against any 
person because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, 
familial status or disability in connection with the lease. 
 
14. Conflict with Other Provisions of Lease   

a. The terms of the tenancy addendum are prescribed 
by HUD in accordance with Federal law and 
regulation, as a condition for Federal assistance to 
the tenant and tenant’s family under the Section 8 
voucher program.   

b. In case of any conflict between the provisions of the 
tenancy addendum as required by HUD, and any 
other provisions of the lease or any other agreement 
between the owner and the tenant, the requirements 
of the HUD-required tenancy addendum shall 
control.  

 
15. Changes in Lease or Rent   

a. The tenant and the owner may not make any change 
in the tenancy addendum. However, if the tenant and 
the owner agree to any other changes in the lease, 
such changes must be in writing, and the owner must 
immediately give the PHA a copy of such changes. 
The lease, including any changes, must be in 
accordance with the requirements of the tenancy 
addendum.  

b. In the following cases, tenant-based assistance shall 
not be continued unless the PHA has approved a 
new tenancy in accordance with program 
requirements and has executed a new HAP contract 
with the owner:   
(1) If there are any changes in lease requirements 

governing tenant or owner responsibilities for 
utilities or appliances;   

(2) If there are any changes in lease provisions 
governing the term of the lease;   

(3) If the family moves to a new unit, even if the 
unit is in the same building or complex.   

c. PHA approval of the tenancy, and execution of a 
new HAP contract, are not required for agreed 
changes in the lease other than as specified in 
paragraph b.  

d. The owner must notify the PHA of any changes in 
the amount of the rent to owner at least sixty days 
before any such changes go into effect, and the 
amount of the rent to owner following any such 
agreed change may not exceed the reasonable rent 
for the unit as most recently determined or 
redetermined by the PHA in accordance with HUD 
requirements.  

 
16. Notices  

Any notice under the lease by the tenant to the owner or by the owner 
to the tenant must be in writing. 
 
17.   Definitions  
Contract unit. The housing unit rented by the tenant with 
assistance under the program.  
Family. The persons who may reside in the unit with assistance 
under the program.  
HAP contract. The housing assistance payments contract between the 
PHA and the owner. The PHA pays housing assistance payments to the 
owner in accordance with the HAP contract.  
Household. The persons who may reside in the contract unit. The 
household consists of the family and any PHA-approved live-in aide. 
(A live-in aide is a person who resides in the unit to provide 
necessary supportive services for a member of the family who is a 
person with disabilities.)  
Housing quality standards (HQS). The HUD minimum 
quality standards for housing assisted under the Section 8 
tenant-based programs.  
HUD. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
HUD requirements. HUD requirements for the Section 8 program. 
HUD requirements are issued by HUD headquarters, as regulations, 
Federal Register notices or other binding program directives. 
Lease. The written agreement between the owner and the tenant for the 
lease of the contract unit to the tenant. The lease includes the tenancy 
addendum prescribed by HUD.  
PHA. Public Housing Agency.  
Premises. The building or complex in which the contract unit is 
located, including common areas and grounds. 
Program. The Section 8 housing choice voucher program.  
Rent to owner. The total monthly rent payable to the owner for the 
contract unit. The rent to owner is the sum of the portion of rent 
payable by the tenant plus the PHA housing assistance payment to 
the owner. 
Section 8. Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 (42 
United States Code 1437f).  
Tenant. The family member (or members) who leases the unit from 
the owner.  
Voucher program. The Section 8 housing choice voucher program. 
Under this program, HUD provides funds to a PHA for rent subsidy 
on behalf of eligible families. The tenancy under the lease will be 
assisted with rent subsidy for a tenancy under the voucher program. 
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purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet.   (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS

(b)   County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff County of Residence of First Listed Defendant
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES) (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF 
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

(c)   Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)  Attorneys (If Known)

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X” in One Box Only) III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant) 

u 1   U.S. Government u 3  Federal Question PTF    DEF PTF    DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State u 1 u  1 Incorporated or Principal Place u 4 u 4

    of Business In This State

u 2   U.S. Government u 4  Diversity Citizen of Another State u 2 u  2 Incorporated and Principal Place u 5 u 5
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III) of Business In Another State

Citizen or Subject of a u 3 u  3 Foreign Nation u 6 u 6
    Foreign Country

IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an “X” in One Box Only)� ����������&OLFN�KHUH�IRU��1DWXUH�RI�6XLW�&RGH�'HVFULSWLRQV�
CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES

u 110 Insurance      PERSONAL INJURY       PERSONAL INJURY u 625 Drug Related Seizure u 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 u 375 False Claims Act
u 120 Marine u 310 Airplane u 365 Personal Injury  -   of Property 21 USC 881 u 423 Withdrawal u 376 Qui Tam (31 USC 
u 130 Miller Act u 315 Airplane Product   Product Liability u 690 Other   28 USC 157   3729(a))
u 140 Negotiable Instrument   Liability u 367 Health Care/ u 400 State Reapportionment
u 150 Recovery of Overpayment u 320 Assault, Libel &  Pharmaceutical PROPERTY RIGHTS u 410 Antitrust

 & Enforcement of Judgment   Slander  Personal Injury u 820 Copyrights u 430 Banks and Banking
u 151 Medicare Act u 330 Federal Employers’  Product Liability u 830 Patent u 450 Commerce
u 152 Recovery of Defaulted   Liability u 368 Asbestos Personal u 840 Trademark u 460 Deportation

 Student Loans u 340 Marine   Injury Product u 470 Racketeer Influenced and
 (Excludes Veterans) u 345 Marine Product   Liability LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY  Corrupt Organizations

u 153 Recovery of Overpayment   Liability   PERSONAL PROPERTY u 710 Fair Labor Standards u 861 HIA (1395ff) u 480 Consumer Credit
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u 196 Franchise  Injury u 385 Property Damage u 751 Family and Medical u 891 Agricultural Acts

u 362 Personal Injury -  Product Liability   Leave Act u 893 Environmental Matters
 Medical Malpractice u 790 Other Labor Litigation u 895 Freedom of Information

 REAL PROPERTY    CIVIL RIGHTS   PRISONER PETITIONS u 791 Employee Retirement FEDERAL TAX SUITS   Act
u 210 Land Condemnation u 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus:  Income Security Act u 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff u 896 Arbitration
u 220 Foreclosure u 441 Voting u 463 Alien Detainee   or Defendant) u 899 Administrative Procedure
u 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment u 442 Employment u 510 Motions to Vacate u 871 IRS—Third Party  Act/Review or Appeal of
u 240 Torts to Land u 443 Housing/  Sentence   26 USC 7609  Agency Decision
u 245 Tort Product Liability  Accommodations u 530 General u 950 Constitutionality of
u 290 All Other Real Property u 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - u 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION  State Statutes
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u 1 Original
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u 2 Removed from
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u  3 Remanded from

Appellate Court
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Litigation -
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VI. CAUSE OF ACTION
Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

Brief description of cause:

VII. REQUESTED IN
COMPLAINT:

u CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION
UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P.

DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
JURY DEMAND: u Yes u No

VIII. RELATED CASE(S)
IF ANY (See instructions):

JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER
DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

RECEIPT # AMOUNT APPLYING IFP JUDGE MAG. JUDGE

United States of America

Dylan J. Steinberg, U.S. Attorney's Office - District of DE 
1313 N. Market St., Suite 400, P.O. Box 2046 
Wilmington, DE 19899-2046; (302) 573-6277

GOODFISH ENTERPRISES, LLC and CHRISTOPHER LUKACS,

New Castle

Basil Kollias, Esq., Kollias Law 
3513 Concord Pike, Suite 3300 
Wilmington, DE 19803; (302) 444-8140

31 U.S.C. §§ 3729–33

Defendants made false certifications resulting in receipt of federal funds

12/18/3920 /s/ Dylan J. Steinberg
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44
Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court.  This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet.  Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed.  The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

I.(a) Plaintiffs-Defendants.  Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant.  If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use 
only the full name or standard abbreviations.  If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and 
then the official, giving both name and title.

   (b) County of Residence.  For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the 
time of filing.  In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing.  (NOTE: In land 
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)

   (c) Attorneys.  Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record.  If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

II. Jurisdiction.  The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings.  Place an "X"
in one of the boxes.  If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff.  (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348.  Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant.  (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
Federal question.  (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States.  In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
Diversity of citizenship.  (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states.  When Box 4 is checked, the
citizenship of the different parties must be checked.  (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity
cases.)

III. Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties.  This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above.  Mark this
section for each principal party.

IV. 1DWXUH�RI�6XLW���3ODFH�DQ��;��LQ�WKH�DSSURSULDWH�ER[���,I�WKHUH�DUH�PXOWLSOH�QDWXUH�RI�VXLW�FRGHV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�FDVH��SLFN�WKH�QDWXUH�RI�VXLW�FRGH�
WKDW�LV�PRVW�DSSOLFDEOH���&OLFN�KHUH�IRU��1DWXUH�RI�6XLW�&RGH�'HVFULSWLRQV�

V. Origin.  Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings.  (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court.  (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court.  (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action.  Use the date of remand as the filing
date.
Reinstated or Reopened.  (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court.  Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District.  (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a).  Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.
Multidistrict Litigation – Transfer.  (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C.
Section 1407.
Multidistrict Litigation – Direct File.  (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7.  Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to
changes in statue.

VI. Cause of Action.  Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause.  Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity.  Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553  Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII. Requested in Complaint.  Class Action.  Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand.  In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand.  Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases.  This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any.  If there are related pending cases, insert the docket
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature.  Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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